



*Statement on
Standards for
Attestation Engagements*

*December 2019
20*

Issued by the Auditing Standards Board

**STATEMENT ON STANDARDS FOR
ATTESTATION ENGAGEMENTS**

***AMENDMENTS TO THE DESCRIPTION OF THE
CONCEPT OF MATERIALITY***

(Amends the following sections of Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements [SSAE] No. 18, Attestation Standards: Clarification and Recodification:

- Section 205, Examination Engagements [AICPA, Professional Standards, AT-C sec. 205];*
- Section 210, Review Engagements [AICPA, Professional Standards, AT-C sec. 210])*

© 2019 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc. All rights reserved.

For information about the procedure for requesting permission to make copies of any part of this work, please email copyright-permissions@aicpa-cima.com with your request. Otherwise, requests should be written and mailed to Permissions Department, 220 Leigh Farm Road, Durham, NC 27707-8110.

Auditing Standards Board

(2019–2020)

Michael J. Santay, *Chair*
Brad C. Ames
Monique Booker
Jay D. Brodish, Jr.
Dora A. Burzenski
Joseph S. Cascio
Harry Cohen
Jeanne M. Dee
Lawrence M. Gill
Gaylen R. Hansen

Audrey A. Gramling
Tracy W. Harding
Jon Heath
Jan C. Herringer
Kristen A. Kociolek
G. Alan Long
Sara Lord
Marcia L. Marien
Aaron Saito

Materiality Task Force

Jan C. Herringer, *Chair*
Joseph S. Cascio
Lawrence M. Gill

Marcia L. Marien
Victoria L. Pitkin
Dan Voogt

AICPA Staff

Robert Dohrer
Chief Auditor
Professional Standards and Services

Ahava Goldman
Associate Director
Audit and Attest Standards —
Public Accounting

Teighlor March
Assistant General Counsel

Note: *Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements* are issued by senior committees of the AICPA designated to issue pronouncements on attestation matters applicable to the preparation and issuance of attestation reports for entities that are nonissuers. The “Compliance With Standards Rule”(ET sec. 1.310.001)¹ of the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct requires compliance with these standards when performing an attestation engagement for a nonissuer.

¹ All ET sections can be found in AICPA *Professional Standards*.

Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements

Amendments to the Description of the Concept of Materiality

Boldface italics denotes new language. Deleted text is in ~~strikethrough~~.

SSAE No. 18, Attestation Standards: Clarification and Recodification

AT-C Section 205, Examination Engagements¹

[No amendment to paragraphs .01–.A16.]

.A17 In general, misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if *there is a substantial likelihood that*, individually or in the aggregate, they ~~could reasonably be expected to~~ *would* influence ~~the judgment~~ *relevant decisions of* ~~made by~~ intended users ~~that are made~~ based on the subject matter. The practitioner’s consideration of materiality is a matter of professional judgment and is affected by the practitioner’s perception of the common information needs of intended users as a group. ~~In this context~~ *For purposes of determining materiality*, it is reasonable for the practitioner to ~~may~~ assume that intended users

- a. have a reasonable knowledge of the subject matter and a willingness to study the subject matter with reasonable diligence.
- b. understand that the subject matter is measured or evaluated and examined to appropriate levels of materiality and have an understanding of any materiality concepts included in the criteria.
- c. understand any inherent uncertainties involved in measuring or evaluating the subject matter.
- d. make reasonable ~~decisions on the basis of~~ *judgments based on* the subject matter ~~taken as a whole~~.

Unless the engagement has been designed to meet the particular information needs of specific users, the possible effect of misstatements on specific users, whose information needs may vary widely, is not ordinarily considered.

[No further amendment to AT-C section 205.]

1. This amendment is effective for practitioners’ examination reports dated on or after December 15, 2020.

¹ All AT-C sections can be found in AICPA *Professional Standards*.

AT-C Section 210, *Review Engagements*

[No amendment to paragraphs .01–.A15.]

.A16 In general, misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if *there is a substantial likelihood that*, individually or in the aggregate, they ~~could reasonably be expected to~~ *would* influence ~~the judgment~~ *relevant decisions of* ~~made by~~ intended users ~~that are made~~ based on the subject matter. The practitioner's consideration of materiality is a matter of professional judgment and is affected by the practitioner's perception of the common information needs of intended users as a group. ~~In this context~~ *For purposes of determining materiality*, it is reasonable for the practitioner ~~to~~ *may* assume that intended users

- a. have a reasonable knowledge of the subject matter and a willingness to study the subject matter with reasonable diligence.
- b. understand that the subject matter is measured or evaluated and reviewed to appropriate levels of materiality and have an understanding of any materiality concepts included in the criteria.
- c. understand any inherent uncertainties involved in measuring or evaluating the subject matter.
- d. make reasonable ~~decisions on the basis of~~ *judgments based on* the subject matter ~~taken as a whole~~.

Unless the engagement has been designed to meet the particular information needs of specific users, the possible effect of misstatements on specific users, whose information needs may vary widely, is not ordinarily considered.

[No further amendment to AT-C section 215.]

2. This amendment is effective for practitioners' review reports dated on or after December 15, 2020.